
 

 2021 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

MEETING PACKET 
 
 

1



                    *        Requires Action 
**      According to Kent District Library Board of Trustee Bylaws, Article VII, Item 7.1.3, “Public comments will 
          be limited to 3 minutes per person or group and 15 minutes per subject.” 

 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Meeting Agenda 

 

 

 LOCATION 

 

 DATE & TIME  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

A.  

B.  
C.  

       

        

 

 

 

 

  

2



BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Meeting Minutes 

 

 LOCATION 

 DATE + TIME  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

• 

3



• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 

 

 

• 

• 

• 

 

• 

  

• 

 

•  

• 

4



•  

 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

5



 

 

 

 

6



         

                    

Monthly Cash Position Per Bank
Month ended October 31

 

2021 2020

Account Rate Amount Rate Amount
0.000% $1,511,879.27 0.000% $1,916,613.92
0.010% $3,952,709.03 0.018% $4,317,558.92
0.653% $55,827.32 0.760% $56,401.36

$11,926,822.00 0.000% $11,878,846.00
$17,447,237.62 $18,169,420.20

* Includes Trust Pooled fund balances

NOTE:  Totals do not include Petty Cash or Branch Cash drawer balances

Atlanta Capital Investments Atlanta Capital Investments

Account
Huntington Checking Account Huntington Checking Account
Huntington Investment Account Huntington Investment Account
*Kent County Pooled Funds *Kent County Pooled Funds

Checking Account 10.55%

Investment Account
23.76%

Pooled Funds .31%

Atlanta Capital 65.38%  

Checking Account 8.67%     

Investment Account
22.65%

Pooled Funds .32%Atlanta Capital 68.36%  

7



         

                    

Monthly Revenues and Expenditures
Month ended October 31

Budget to Actual with Prior Year Comparison Comparative Percentages Current & Prior Year

Revenues Account Amount
2020 Actual 2020 YTD Revenues 96.9%
2021 Actual 2021 YTD Revenues 100.0%
2021 Budgeted

2020 YTD Expenditures 73.1%
Expenditures 2021 YTD Expenditures 75.8%
2020 Actual  
2021 Actual
2021 Budgeted 30,334,272$                   

25,619,824$                   
27,013,121$                   
27,025,126$                   

20,738,210$                   
22,991,684$                   

$0

$5

$10

$15

$20

$25

$30

$35

2020
Actual

2021
Actual

2021
Budgeted

2020
Actual

2021
Actual

2021
Budgeted

M
ill
io
ns

Revenues                                                  Expenditures

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

120%

2020 YTD Revenues 2021 YTD Revenues 2020 YTD Expenditures 2021 YTD Expenditures

Comparative Percentages Current & Prior Year

$0.00

$5.00

$10.00

$15.00

$20.00

$25.00

$30.00

$35.00

2020
Actual

2021       Actual 2021 Budgeted 2020       Actual 2021       Actual 2021 Budgeted

Mi
llio

ns

Revenues                                                  Expenditures

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

120%

2020 YTD Revenues 2021 YTD Revenues 2020 YTD Expenditures 2021 YTD Expenditures

Comparative Percentages Current & Prior Year

8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



 

For the upcoming holidays, the Tyrone Township Branch is looking forward to beloved annual
traditions like “Happy Noon Year” and “Let’s Get Ready for Reindeer.” This year, for the first time,
branch librarians are making the reindeer event into an all-out evening of fun by hosting a special
“Winter Wonder Stories” just before the scheduled time. In addition to these, the Alpine Branch will also
be hosting a coffee and canvas event, wherein patrons can come and paint while enjoying a cup of
coffee. This relaxing event is a favorite among patrons. In December, the Walker Branch will be
partnering with the City of Walker for the Annual Winter Fest, which features music, reindeer, Santa and
more. For many Walker patrons and community members, this festivity officially kicks off the holiday
season. As part of the fun, Walker staff will also be hosting the always popular seasonal craft station.  

At all three branches, staff members have spent the last year dedicated to growing in their
understanding of KDL’s core values: Helpful, Inclusive, Courageous, Authentic and Positive. For every
value they also spent two months learning and talking about each one. Discussions took place in
huddles, in staff meetings, at the staff in-service and on Yammer (a Microsoft discussion board).
Regional Manager Liz Knapp is proud of how authentically the team participated in these discussions
and how whole-heartedly each of her team members has strived to embody these core values in their
relationships with patrons and with each other.

OCTOBER EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR'S REPORT

2 0 2 1

ALPINE, TYRONE + WALKER

Along with a quick rundown of holiday/winter events coming up at your branch, please also
share: How have you seen your team grow the most over the past year and/or what was your

team’s biggest accomplishment? (Of what are y'all the most proud?) 

ALTO + ENGLEHARDT
At the Alto and Englehardt branches, both separate and cooperative events will be taking place as
communities celebrate the holiday season. December 4 is the Annual Night-Time Santa Parade put on
by the Lowell Area Chamber of Commerce. Though the event is marked as “night-time,” it features
holiday activities that go on all day, including arts and crafts booths, a Santa visit, downtown shopping
and a Friends of the Englehardt Library book sale. Both branches will also work together on making a
parade float for the big event. One week later, the Alto Branch will be participating in the Lions Club’s
Community Children’s Christmas Party (health precautions permitting). Both branches will also be
enthusiastically participating in all of the regular holiday library program offerings. Though Gingerbread
Lane still cannot be in-person this year, staff are happy to be able to provide kits as backup for families
to take home. Fortunately, one program that is back in person is library storytimes. Between Christmas
and New Year’s, Englehardt will be using KDL Lab tubs with young visitors at storytime events for
something extra fun to do.

This past year, a major highlight for the Alto and Englehardt teams is how they have so graciously dealt
with continuous change. Not only has there been a global pandemic and fluctuating health
recommendations, but there have been staffing changes, position vacancies and scheduling issues due
to illness. It's safe to say that each member of the Alto and Englehardt team have showed a tremendous
amount of grace, patience and understanding during an otherwise unpredictable time. Many patrons
have no idea how much extra the employees have done to make regular service go on seamlessly and
excellently. As the world continues to fight its way through the final stages of this pandemic, no doubt
the Alto and Englehardt teams will come out of this stronger and more resilient than ever.

21



 

End-of-year festivities are always an exciting time for the Byron Township and Grandville branches.
Staff looks forward to celebrating with patrons at a variety of activities. Beyond regular programming,
Byron Township in particular will host two events that are especially exciting. One is the return of the
annual Gingerbread House Contest. This is the seventh annual contest of its kind, wherein folks of all
ages are invited to the branch to drop off their gingerbread house creations for display from December
9 to December 16. During that time, branch visitors and patrons may vote on their favorites, with prizes
awarded based on popular vote and judge’s choice. This is such a fun program and staff are happy to
have it back after a one-year hiatus. Similarly, staff are also excited to welcome back the annual
reindeer event on December 6. At Grandville, staff are always looking for a family-friendly event to offer
that is suitable for all ages between Christmas and New Year’s. This year, folks can come every day
between the hours of 2 PM to 4 PM to enjoy board games, puzzles, KDL Lab tubs, or Snowfest Craft
Time. The creative team will also be working to add some decorative touches to the branch for the
holidays.

Looking back on this year there are so many things to celebrate when it comes to Byron and Grandville
staff, but their flexibility and cooperative growth have certainly been a highlight. 2021 followed 2020 as
an exceptionally long and challenging time, both because of the ongoing difficulties with COVID and
because of individual building projects, staffing changes, materials challenges, and the list goes on.
Though staff have had their hands full, they have nevertheless risen to the challenge and have done so
with grace and poise. Because staff have made it through 2021, they will certainly be ready for anything
2022 can throw at them.

BYRON + GRANDVILLE

CALEDONIA + CASCADE
After another busy year, Cascade and Caledonia staff have grown in patience and flexibility. Much of
2021 has felt like an embodiment of the old saying: “Three steps forward and two steps back.”
Nevertheless, staff adjusted to whatever restrictions were added (or lifted!), their greatest concern
being for the health and safety of patrons and peers. All staff members should feel a great sense of pride
for the immense amount of compassion they have demonstrated to others this year and always.

Looking ahead, there are so many fun things happening now and scheduled throughout the winter
season. On December 28 at Cascade and December 29 at Caledonia from 10 AM to 12 PM, both branches
will host a Wild Wizarding Session for the area’s many Harry Potter fans. Both branches will also have
reindeer back this year (December 1 at Cascade at 4 PM and December 6 at Caledonia at 6 PM) and will
ring in 2022 with “Happy Noon Year” programming on December 31. At Cascade, the Tech Help Group
on Fridays at 10 AM has been a popular program amongst seniors and there has been a steady increase
in participants as the weeks move on. The “In Good Taste” Cookbook Club has also intrigued many a
patron. Many have learned a few new recipes and added several to their menu rotation. At Caledonia,
the Bright Beginnings Playgroup meets twice a month and staff will be adding extra KDL Labs at a new
time to provide programming for interested homeschoolers. A sensory play session on Fridays at 11 AM
is also being added. Caledonia continues to have great success with high participation at their craft
labs, with a great turnout expected at the Watercolor Painting event on January 4. 

22



 

At the Comstock Park Branch, staff keep finding new ways to engage with the community! Youth
Paraprofessional Leigh Verburg has started a six-week “Girls Who Code” club. Participants range from
third to fifth grade and can learn to code simple computer games and work on digital crafts, as well as
problem-solving. Branch Librarian Lisa Rodkey and Youth Paraprofessional Jackie Boss have also
connected with York Creek apartments and received permission to post fliers advertising library
programming and services in both English and Spanish. As a result, there has been a noticeable uptick
in storytime attendance and new patrons in the branches. This holiday season, the branch will welcome
reindeer on December 7 and host “Happy Noon Year” on December 31.

At the Plainfield Township Branch, staff are eager to get into the holiday spirit! The Friends of the
Library have already started an ongoing “gift quality” book sale in the branch. On December 9, they will
begin the holiday bag book sale, which was put on hold for 2020. Though this was a difficult time for
patrons, friends and staff alike, the Plainfield team remained positive and handled all situations with
grace, inclusivity and open discussion. In-branch programming continues to go well, tech appointments
are back open and weekly teen study nights are scheduled through the end of the fall. This winter,
Plainfield will be offering mentorship opportunities at Northview Middle School, as well as sending
librarians to various senior living centers in order to build relationships there.

COMSTOCK PARK + PLAINFIELD 

23



 

4.4 – “My organization's work positively impacts people's lives.” 
4.3 – “My coworkers and I have a good working relationship.” 
4.1 – “I feel proud of my work and the role I play in contributing to our library system.” 
4.1 – “Employees here take the initiative to help other employees when the need arises.” 
4.1 – “My supervisor and I have a good working relationship.” 

2.9 – “Communication between senior leaders and employees is good in my organization.” 
3.1 – “Management within my organization recognizes strong job performance.” 
3.2 – “I am satisfied with my opportunities for professional growth.” 
3.4 – “I am satisfied with my total benefits package.” 
3.4 – “I am satisfied with the investment my organization makes in training and development.” 

Following over twenty years of service to the KDL Pension Board, Citizen Trustee, Henry Vry, is retiring. A
search is underway for his replacement. His presence has made a true impact over the years for the Plan
Administrator, the Pension Board, and the members of the plan. The KDL Pension is fully funded with
over $62 million dollars invested and is prepared to accommodate market fluctuations in support of
nearly two-hundred current retirees.  73% of employees hired since 2010 (I.e., following the closing of
the defined benefit plan) are participating in retirement savings with over $12 million in assets invested
in the defined contribution plan.   KDL's retirement systems are strong.

Training initiatives, especially those in support of the strategic plan's efforts in Equity, Diversity, and
Inclusion (EDI) with Paradigm culture training being implemented for all employees. 

The annual employee engagement survey showed a general decline in engagement for the first time in
several years.  A breakdown of the top 5 and bottom 5 scored statements are below.  
Top 5 scores: 

Bottom 5 scores: 

Each of the past two years has brought only a de minimis cost increase to health care premiums. This
year, KDL employees covered by health insurance will experience a reduction in the premiums they pay
due to lower-than-expected experience with the plan. A combination of delayed medical services during
the pandemic, coupled with lower levels of illness and higher use of telemedicine has resulted in
savings to both KDL and those covered by health insurance. Efforts to maintain affordable health care
will continue.
 
An investment of approximately $3,500 this past year has saved KDL employees nearly $11,000 in
prescription drug costs.  Using MedTipster, both full- and part-time staff are able to experience
substantial savings towards the cost of prescription drugs whether for acute care or health
maintenance.
 
The labor shortage has brought greater turnover as many staff have considered alternative employment
options throughout the past year.  Entry-level wage growth throughout the US has also occurred in Kent
County.  In an effort to slow the turnover of Assistant Branch Librarians (ABLs), wages were increased by
$3.00/hour last month for employees who are not at the top of the pay scale. Initial reactions have been
largely positive and are encouraging retention as reported by staff. 

And finally, since implementing a student loan repayment program, KDL has supported over 80
employees in their efforts to become free of student debt. Throughout the past several years, KDL-HR
has implemented alternatives to degree requirements for most positions to enable the workforce to
grow professionally KDL without necessarily accruing excessive costs associated with higher education.  

HUMAN RESOURCES
F E A T U R E D  D E P A R T M E N T S

24



 

PROGAMMING + OUTREACH
BOOKMOBILE 

Godfrey Lee Early Childhood Center, Bethany Bridgeway School, Ideal Park Christian Reformed
Church, Southwood Elementary, Grand Rapids Marathon, La Escuelita, Ottawa County Annual
Diversity Forum, Parkview Elementary, Kent City Migrant Headstart and Camelot Woods to deliver
Kaleidoscope, PerkPass, Database tech tutoring, Food Market brochures, reading books, setting up
ebooks Apps, and registering members of the community with KDL Library cards. The Bookmobile
collaborated with Grand Rapids Opera for a Trick or Treat Event. 

The Bookmobile is on the road to gauge interest from community partners and provide library service
options. 

Where the Bookmobile has been: 

 

KDL FREE LIBRARY
KDL's partnership with the Gerald Ford International Airport was highlighted on the link below:
https://www.experiencegr.com/meetings-blog/post/five-reasons-the-gerald-r-ford-international-
airport-makes-traveling-easy/. 

PUERTAS ABRIETAS 
For the month of October, the visits to Puerta Abiertas had to be postponed due to an outbreak of
COVID-19. KDL was able to meet with two 12-person groups, for 24 participants in total each meeting.
The Krause Memorial (Rockford) Branch was able to provide computers to be used during these classes
for members that tested negative and these members visited the Service Center to plan for an
upcoming community event.  

VIRTUAL OUTREACH  AND WIMEE'S WORD
KDL returned to high numbers with 7,539 live views with 7 partner organizations, 4 families with
children and 5 performers that visited Wimee's Words. In January 2022, the partnership in local public
television channel WGVU will begin broadcasting. 

 WINTER PROGRAM 
KDL is receiving submissions for the Write Michigan Short Story Contest.  So far, close to 200 stories
have been submitted, with over 80 of them in the adult category. Writers may submit stories until
November 30 at noon for the Youth, Teen, Adult and Spanish Language Youth categories. The keynote
speaker for the awards ceremony in March 2022 will be Detroit author Stephen Mack Jones. 
 
The Kent County Teen Film Festival began taking submissions in October with a deadline of Friday, Jan.
21, 2022. The festival is open to all Kent County teens in grades 6 - 12. A selection of the films will be
chosen to be screened on February 26. A panel of judges will select the winners in various categories on
the day of the festival. 
 
KDL is developing Streaming Sensory Storytimes videos to debut this winter. The pre-recorded videos
will encourage families to engage with KDL storytime content from the comfort of their own homes.
These are being intentionally developed for those for whom the storytime experience may be too
stimulating or overwhelming. 

25

https://www.experiencegr.com/meetings-blog/post/five-reasons-the-gerald-r-ford-international-airport-makes-traveling-easy/


AMY VAN ANDEL LIBRARY 
H E L P F U L
was nominated by Liz Wierenga because...
To Sarah, for volunteering to fill in gaps in our book talking schedule. I appreciate her willingness to step in
when we lost a member of our Book Talk Team. Her book talks are always enthusiastic. I really love seeing
her personality shine through. Way to go, Sarah! and because Sarah agreed to snap some photos of
Babytime for me and then stayed and chatted with the moms afterward. It was great to see her making
connections with our patrons and helping with all the babies! You did an awesome job. I appreciate you,
Sarah!

S A R A H  P O W E R S

SERVICE CENTER
H E L P F U L
was nominated by Sheri Glon because...
We received a request from the Township Board for a quarterly update of their local KDL branch.  Katie put
together a Canva template on a pretty short notice that allowed us to turn what could have been a dry
spreadsheet of stats into an eye-catching piece that I am sure will impress the Board members. Thank you
for sharing your artistic talents to make KDL look good!

and by Jennifer Zeilbeck because ... 
Katie is my superhero!  � She helped me not only once, but twice at the Team KDL event (Fruit Ridge
Hayrides). She created an online sign-in sheet for Team KDL volunteers ... and ... put my sign-in sheet for
employees in alphabetical order. She is truly an AWESOME asset for KDL! So glad she said "YES" to joining
the KDL family!

K A T I E  B L A K E S L E E

SPENCER  TOWNSHIP
H E L P F U L
was nominated by Kelly Gibson because...
TClyde worked very hard helping an elderly gentleman maneuver through e-mail, text, printing, and
phone calls to a lawyer to straighten out his legal issues.

C L Y D E  W A L T E N B A U G H  

KATIE KUDOS 

26



KDL Board of  Trustees  Meeting 
includes  

Execut ive  Director 's  Evaluat ion 
THURSDAY,  DECEMBER 16,  2021

4:30 PM 
KDL SERVICE & MEETING

CENTER

DATES OF INTEREST
OTHER MEETINGS

KDL Pension Meeting 
February 16, 2022
1:00 PM 
KDL Service & Meeting Center

PLA 2022 Conference
March 23-25, 2022
Portland, OR 

ALA Annual Conference 
June 23-28, 2022
Washington, DC

Dates and deadlines

JUNE 2027

UPCOMING
MEETINGS

KDL Board of  Trustees  Meeting  
THURSDAY,  JANUARY 20,  2022

4:30 PM 
KDL SERVICE & MEETING

CENTER

27



2021 Holiday GIft Basket Schedule 

0 9 : 3 0   A M

SPENCER BRANCH

1 0 : 3 0  A M
NELSON BRANCH

1 1 : 3 0  A M
TYRONE BRANCH

1 2 : 3 0  P M
LUNCH

1 : 3 0  P M
KRAUSE MEMORIAL BRANCH

2 : 3 0  P M
ALPINE  BRANCH

3 : 3 0  P M
WALKER BRANCH

BYRON  BRANCH

4 : 3 0  P M

COMSTOCK PARK BRANCH

0 8 : 3 0   A M

SERVICE CENTER

9 : 3 0  A M
PLAINFIELD  BRANCH

1 0 : 3 0  A M
AMY VAN ANDEL LIBRARY

1 1 : 3 0  A M
LUNCH

1 2 : 3 0  P M
ENGLEHARDT BRANCH

1 : 3 0  P M
ALTO BRANCH

2 : 3 0  P M
CALEDONIA BRANCH

3 : 3 0  P M

1 2 : 0 0  P M

EAST GRAND RAPIDS BRANCH

1 : 0 0  P M
CASCADE BRANCH

2 : 0 0  P M
RICHARD L. ROOT BRANCH

3 : 0 0  P M
KELLOGSVILLE BRANCH

4 : 0 0  P M  
GRANDVILLE BRANCH

5 : 0 0  P M  
WYOMING BRANCH

4 : 3 0  P M
GAINES  BRANCH

MONDAY, DECEMBER 13 TUESDAY, DECEMBER 14 WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 15

28



N
EW
!

��OCTOBER�2021

N
EW
!

At risk—budget, scope, timeline

MONTHLY�PROJECT�REPORT

Projects in approval queue

Declined

New projects approved

13

2

4

Active Approved  
Projects

On track Paused/cancelled—being redefined or stopped

Project Lead: Tammy Schneider
Status: On track

 

Approval Date: 10.20.21
Due Date: 03.31.22

 

With the successful implementation of the adult selection of KDL Core Perennial Favorites, a similar
Youth and Teen Core Collection was also in high demand. With the constraints, risks and deliverables
of the adult collection in mind, this project team will likewise create and maintain a list of 50
perennial Youth favorites and 50 perennial Teen favorites (thus, 100 total) based on KDL circulation
and local popularity. Both lists will serve as a dynamic reflection of the non-digital reading material
that KDL has to offer, the maintenance of which Youth and Teen Librarians will prioritize semi-
annually and that will not have a specific fiction to non-fiction ratio, thereby helping to increase
circulation and aid in display creation. The Youth and Teen Core collections will be distinct from the
Adult Core collection of the same name based on a conspicuously placed label on the spine, which
will be easily detectable when browsing.

Circulation�Moonshot:�Youth�+�Teen�Core�Collection

Curbside�Texting�+�Interactive�Voice�Response
Project Lead: Morgan Hanks
Status: On track

 

Approval Date: 10.20.21
Due Date: 03.31.22

 

As in-house library services continue to pick up, the Library’s current workflow for handling curbside
library service, which involves devoting one staff member to exclusively monitor calls, has not
presented an efficient use of labor resources or a long-term solution to staff enrichment. Fortunately,
IP Consulting has been working on a custom solution to this problem by introducing a curbside
texting and interactive voice response software. This software should alleviate staff time spent
monitoring phones and add greater flexibility to the curbside position. As part of this solution, this
project will also seek to: Increase/improve the patron user-experience when using KDL’s curbside
service, integrate the new software into Microsoft Teams, provide both calling and texting options for
curbside library users and create training for staff to know how to use and respond to requests,
among other deliverables. This project will not be rolled out systemwide, but will instead focus on a
3-month pilot at the Cascade Branch in order to identify sticking points and other concerns, after
which full implementation may be considered as part of a secondary iteration.

29



Project Lead: Alantha Mansberger
Status: On track

 

Approval Date: 06.30.21
Due Date: 06.01.22

 

Members of the project team recently met to further nail down the synchronicity of the project
timeline as it relates to Circulation Moonshot in general. As of this report, the project remains on track
and each branch is making great progress toward making their collections more browsable and
accessible to patrons.

Circulation�Moonshot:�Displays�+�Merchandising

Circulation�Moonshot:�Weeding�Standards
Project Lead: Liz Guarino
Status: On track

 

Approval Date: 06.30.21
Due Date: 05.31.22

 

As the project team finishes up revisions on new policies and procedures, the team is now actively
tackling how to train on new changes across all branches. As of now, a member of the project team
will be visiting any branches that have finished their Displays and Merchandising recommendation to
thoroughly review the new weeding procedures. From there, Regional Manager II’s and designated
weeding “branch champions” will further train and re-enforce as necessary. Perhaps most exciting,
each branch will soon have a customized daily weeding report specific to their branch shelf
allocation. These will be specifically determined and set during the Displays and Merchandising visits.

Project Lead: Samantha Hodge
Status: On track

 

Approval Date: 03.24.21
Due Date: 12.31.21

 

EDI�Collection�Audit�/�Tagging�

Endowment�Fund�Management
Project Lead: Christine Mwangi
Status: Complete

 

Approval Date: 05.05.21
Due Date:  12.31.21

 

With an annual fundraising goal set as part of the Library's Key Performance Indicators for 2022, the
project team has succeeded in receiving a recommendation from Kennari Consulting and a Case of
Support has been prepared. As of now, a plan is in place for contributions from KDL to the endowment
fund to come through all fundraisers moving forward, such as the winter appeal and Literary Libations
Gala, wherein all unrestricted funds will be deposited into the endowment fund. This, along with the
recent hiring of a new Finance Manager, means this project is now complete.

The adult fiction section is all tagged, and project lead Samantha Hodge plans to do a spot check
audit of 50 titles to ensure they have the proper tags. Next, she will work with the Task and Research
Board to tag non-fiction titles based on the BISAC category. The project will then change leadership as
it ill focus on tagging youth and teen materials, led by Collection Development Librarian, Tammy
Schneider. To initiate that phase, the children and teen tag lists will be drafted and finalized.

Project Lead: Elvia Myers
Status: On track

 

Approval Date: 09.15.21
Due Date: 11.19.21

 

The project team is pleased to announce that private study rooms and meeting rooms are now
available for use at a majority of KDL branches, where applicable. Please see Private Rooms | Kent
District Library (kdl.org) for a full list of available rooms, hours and booking details. Private rooms are
available in three hour sections on a first-come, first-serve basis. If you use one, please take a moment
to share your experience with library staff! The team continues to monitor feedback and keep an eye on
any unforeseen hiccups that may occur post launch, after which this project will be considered
complete.

MS�Bookings�Post-Pilot

30

https://kdl.org/private-rooms/


Though physical deployment of the new printers has been complete for some time, the primary
matter remaining to be addressed lies with incorrect color saturation on items scanned through the
scanning stations. The manufacturer of these stations is working on an updated color palette and
anticipates delivery within the next couple months. In the meantime, IT has modified some settings
to minimize the issue, a solution that has been well-received by staff. Nearly all minor issues, such as
two-sided printing and printing in multiple layouts, have been resolved, with new issues being
addressed by IT as quickly as they pop up.

New�Printers�and�Print�Management�Service
Project Lead: Kurt Stevens
Status: At Risk - Timeline

 

Approval Date: 03.24.21
Due Date: new date of 10.20.2021

 

Rehmann�-�Finance�Department�Audit
Project Lead: Kim Lindsay
Status: At Risk - Timeline

 

Approval Date: 11.02.20
Due Date: new due date 12.31.21

 

With the hire of the Finance Manager, transition of many day-to-day tasks will be transitioned away
from Rehmann, after which the remainder of punch list items for this project will be addressed and
completed.

Project Lead: David Specht
Status: At Risk - Timeline

 

Approval Date: 03.31.21
Due Date: new due date of 11.30.21

 

The team of jurors has listened to over 130 sample tracks submitted by musicians from all over West
Michigan and have narrowed down the list to approximately 50 artists, each of which has now been
invited to submit their full albums to the music streaming platform. These submissions will continue
throughout the beginning of November. In mid-November, the project team will further review the
submitted content, publish it to the website (vibes.kdl.org) and launch to the public. KDL Vibes is
featured in the upcoming winter Kaleidoscope and will receive a full marketing campaign upon its
official launch.

MUSICat�/�KDL�Vibes

Project Lead: Shelley Roossien
Status: On track

 

Approval Date: 08.18.21
Due Date: 01.15.22

 

Having met with Jennifer Taggart of Bloomfield Township Library to discuss best practices on how to
make a virtual story time "sensory-friendly," the project team has begun to officially move forward
with plans for filming materials. The first few videos are set to be created at the Service Center
between December 7 and 9. In the meantime, Youth Librarian staff are signing up for designated time
slots to film their sensory-friendly (non-copyrighted) content, with established best practices in mind.

Streaming�Sensory�Storytimes

Project Lead: Missy Lancaster
Status: On track

 

Approval Date: 09.23.21
Due Date: 11.30.22

 

The project team met in October to review branch-submitted custom playspace themes, many of which
reference nature, water and farmlife. In November, members of the project team will meet with Blake
Ratcliffe from TMC Furniture in order to start narrowing down ideas. Once Blake sends back initial
notes, the Wonderknook team will review and narrow down ideas even further, with help from branch
staff. The goal is to start production on imaginative and loose parts pieces by December in order to
start rolling them out to branches. Branches will receive pieces as they are completed (as opposed to all
at once); thus, every community should have some pieces to enjoy throughout the process.

Systemwide�Wonderknook�Refresh

31

https://vibes.kdl.org/


BUILDING�PROJECTS

Project Lead: Missy Lancaster
Status: On track

 

Approval Date: 2020
Due Date: 12.17.21 (estimate)

 

This project draws ever nearer to completion! Offices for the Director of Fund Development,
Collection Services Manager and Facilities Manager have now been painted and carpeted, as well as
the extra office (previously the front desk). Basic maintenance in the Finance Department and Finance
Manager's office has now begun, with Finance staff now located in an extra cubicle nearby or working
from home. Basic maintenance for HR is set to begin at the end of November. All furniture has been
ordered, with the exception of an extra desk in the IT department. Shipping and manufacturing delays
have been an ongoing struggle since the onset of COVID and delays are only expected to get longer;
however, everything is still expected to arrive by year's end, after which this project will officially be
complete.

Service�+�Meeting�Center

Project Lead: Craig Buno
Status: N/A

 Toward the end of November, the Steering Committee will be reconvening to see a final presentation
from Fishbeck Architects, featuring the conceptual study conducted for the collective City of Walker
Community Center, KDL Walker Branch and the Walker Ice and Fitness Center. As part of the
presentation, the Fishbeck team will also give an overview of the study process and data collection,
including engagement with community and stakeholders, conceptual designs and conceptual cost
estimates. It has been a long road up to this point and all parties are genuinely excited to see what
Fishbeck has compiled. 

Walker
Approval Date: N/A
Due Date: N/A

 

32



    

 

 

 

 

 

• 

• 

• 

 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 
 

 

 

 

 

33



     

 

    

 

  

 

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

34



     

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

35

https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C759607
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/item/show/603993174
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/item/show/746972174
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C676161
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/item/show/647898174
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/5328992
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/4883753
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/5442804
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/4884323
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/3994890
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C801271
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C438187
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/item/show/762464174
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C797703
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C801255
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C234464
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C256833
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C676161
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C238097
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C664439
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C664439
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C540119
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C647898
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C797703
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/item/show/798102174
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C826866
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C815039
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C804445
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C804445
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/5808556
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/5949982
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/5800191
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/5800191
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/5733472
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/5442804


  
STAFF CHANGES & ANNIVERSARIES 

November 2021 
 

 

NEW HIRES POSITION EFFECTIVE 

Abby Cummings Shelver – Wyoming October 18 

Sue Olep Shelver – Wyoming October 18 

Grace Vereecken Shelver – Alpine/Tyrone Township October 25 

Emily Whalen Finance Manager – Service Center November 1 

Daisy Aguilar-Lopez Library Intern - Kelloggsvillle November 8 

Nicaela Cervantes Library Intern – Kelloggsville November 8 

Kimberly Huynh Library Intern - Kelloggsvillle November 8 

Lia Siu Library Intern – Kelloggsville November 8 

Jennifer DeVault Director of Library Operations – Service Center November 29 

PROMOTIONS & 
TRANSFERS 

FROM TO EFFECTIVE 

Lucy Angers 
Assistant Branch Librarian 
Sub 

Assistant Branch Librarian – 
Kelloggsville 

October 18 

Amanda Johnston 
Patron Services Associate 
– Service Center 

Administrative Assistant - IT October 18 

Isabel Gave  
Assistant Branch Librarian 
Sub 

Assistant Branch Librarian – 
Krause Memorial 

October 18 

Immanuel Deliyannides 
Assistant Branch Librarian 
– Krause Memorial 

Assistant Branch Librarian – 
East Grand Rapids 

October 25 

Christine Paige 
Assistant Branch Librarian - 
Kentwood 

Branch Librarian – Nelson 
Township/Sand Lake 

November 1 

Kent Byerly 
Assistant Branch Librarian 
Sub 

Assistant Branch Librarian – 
Amy Van Andel / Ada 

November 8 

Christopher Brennan 
Assistant Branch Librarian 
Sub 

Assistant Branch Librarian – 
Kentwood 

November 8 

Kelsey Little 
Assistant Branch Librarian 
Sub 

Assistant Branch Librarian – 
Plainfield 

November 15 

Marie Mulder 
Branch Librarian – 
Wyoming 

Collection Development 
Librarian – Service Center 

November 15 

Jason Kotarski 
Assistant Branch Librarian 
– Amy Van Andel / Ada 

Branch Librarian – Wyoming November 15 

Shannon O’Rourke Kasali 
Branch Librarian - 
Grandville 

Branch Librarian – Kentwood November 15 

36



 

 

 

OPEN POSITIONS TYPE 

Assistant Branch Librarian Subs Temporary 

Administrative Assistant – Fund Development Full-time 

Network Systems Specialist – Information Technology Full-time 

Assistant Branch Librarian – Amy Van Andel / Ada Part-time 

Patron Services Associate – Service Center Part-time 

Branch Librarian – Wyoming Full-time 

Shelver – Cascade (3 positions) Part-time 

Assistant Branch Librarian – Kentwood Part-time 

Assistant Branch Librarian – Englehardt Part-time 

Shelver – Kentwood Part-time 
 

PROMOTIONS & 
TRANSFERS 

FROM TO EFFECTIVE 

Dana Banks 
Assistant Branch Librarian - 
Kentwood 

Assistant Branch Librarian – 
Krause Memorial 

November 15 

Will McAfee 
Assistant Branch Librarian 
– Englehardt 

Assistant Branch Librarian – 
Walker 

November 22 

Chloe Schmidt Shelver – Cascade 
Assistant Branch Librarian – 
Wyoming 

November 22 

Amruta More Shelver – Cascade 
Assistant Branch Librarian – 
Kentwood 

November 29 

Abigail Mulonas Shelver – Cascade 
Assistant Branch Librarian – 
Kentwood 

November 29 

DEPARTURES POSITION EFFECTIVE 

Sheri LaPorte Assistant Branch Librarian – Kentwood September 21 

Jacob Wunderink Assistant Branch Librarian – Plainfield September 29 

Kaleigh Ritchie Assistant Branch Librarian Sub October 4 

Patricia Volkhardt Assistant Branch Librarian – Walker October 7 

Nicole Rapacki Assistant Branch Librarian – East Grand Rapids October 8 

Emily Assenmacher Assistant Branch Librarian – Krause Memorial  October 8 

Jacob Ryan Branch Librarian – Kentwood October 14 

Elisabeth Post Shelver – Kentwood October 14 

Julie Cook Assistant Branch Librarian – Wyoming October 18 

Shari Piccard Assistant Branch Librarian – Gaines Township December 3 

37



 

 
EMPLOYEE ANNIVERSARIES 
(DECEMBER) 

BRANCH OR DEPARTMENT LENGTH OF SERVICE 

Jennifer Doornbos Grandville 24 years 

Diana Gray Grandville 23 years 

Deb Schultz Alto 19 years 

Sandy Vanvugt Byron Township 19 years 

Eric Dehaan Byron Township/Grandville 18 years 

Beth Johnstone Cascade 17 years 

Shelley Roossien Wyoming 17 years 

Deb Lilly Cascade 14 years 

Penni Zurgable Amy Van Andel / Ada 14 years 

Theresa Eastman Alpine 12 years 

Chris Straw Englehardt 11 years 

Henry Hong Cascade 5 years 

Marlys Davis Sub Pool 3 years 

Annette Miller Finance 3 years 

Jaclyn Richards Kentwood 3 years 

Steven Schend Gaines Township 3 years 

Marcia Van Drunen Grandville 3 years 

Tricia van Zelst Cascade 3 years 

Johanna Boyle Collection Development 2 years 

Katie Webb Sub Pool 2 years 

Jessica Weber Plainfield 2 years 

Scott Ninemeier Plainfield/Comstock Park 1 year 

Noey Spriggs Byron Township 1 year 

Adrianna Triche Wyoming 1 year 

 
 

38



 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES ATTENDANCE - 2021 

*BOARD PARTICIPATION VIA TELECONFERENCE 

TRUSTEE NAME MEETING DATE  

 

 

TRUSTEE NAME MEETING DATE 

    

    

    

     

 

 
SHIRLEY 

BRUURSEMA 

ANDREW 

ERLEWEIN 

SHERI 

GILREATH-

WATTS 

PETER 

DYKHUIS 

 

CHARLES 

MYERS 
TOM 

NOREEN 

 

CAITIE S. 

OLIVER 
PENNY 

WELLER 

        

        

        

        

   *  *   

      *  

        

     * *  

        

        

    *    

        

        

39



STRATEGIC GOAL ANNUAL INITIATIVE LEAD JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC

EDI

Align all library services, staffing

 makeup and partnerships to be 

reflective and inclusive of the diverse 

communities we serve.

Design and implement a travel-themed interactive program for Summer Wonder that moves 

from region to region, including food, drink, reading, music,  and history. The program will be 

highly social, will foster relationships, and will educate community on what types of cultural 

diversity and ethnic groups we have in our communities and the special traditions they 

celebrate.

Kip Odell, Adult 

Programming group 

and  Summer 

Wonder 

Programming 

Group

EDI

Align all library services, staffing

 makeup and partnerships to be 

reflective and inclusive of the diverse 

communities we serve.

Continue quarterly Paradigm trainings and discussions with the expectation of 100% (88% with 

turnover and leaves  factored in)  employee engagement.

Trish Reid, Shaunna 

Martz

Engagement and 

Service

Increase the value delivered to the 

community by focusing on 

demonstrated needs. 

Clarify  what  excellent service looks like in each role and task and create role guides. Identify 

how service has been impacted by COVID-19 and how can KDL can proactively incorporate 

changes, and document these changes in a clear, easy way for staff in a revision of the KDL Way 

Toolkit (released June/July)

Director of Library 

Operations (with 

help from Regional 

Managers)

Engagement and 

Service

Increase the value delivered to the 

community by focusing on 

demonstrated needs. 

Revamp new cardholder orientation/onboarding. Identify areas of patron

interest upon sign up, train staff to promote materials of interest, give patrons a tour,  and 

identify and promote  branch specific "member" perks to  build awareness of KDL's many 

services and programs and build strong relationships.

Morgan Hanks

Engagement and 

Service

Increase the value delivered to the 

community by focusing on 

demonstrated needs. 

Partner with HealthNet West Mi and St. Mary's Foundation to give early lit kits containing 

information about Kent County Success Basics, information about KDL's physical and digital 

resources and programs, library card applications, and a board book to help foster early 

relationships with the library.

Sara Proano, Early 

Literature 

Workgroup

Sustainablity

Evaluate and streamline operational, 

environmental, and fundraising 

processes to ensure a sustainable 

library.

Develop a process for planning and tracking relationship management 

with community resource partnerships and activities that incorporates a Customer 

Relationship Management (CRM) system so all departments have a better picture of patron's 

cross functional library involvement.

Hannah Lewis

Sustainablity

Evaluate and streamline operational, 

environmental, and fundraising 

processes to ensure a sustainable 

library.

Establish a library ambassador pilot program to convert library

 lovers into strong advocates and develop referrals for volunteering and fund development. 

This program will enhance our volunteer program and training volunteers  to reach out to their 

friends, local businesses, schools to help spread awareness of KDL services and offerings.  

Ambassadors will be granted first access to KDL swag, special events, etc. 

Corey 

Archambault

Sustainablity

Evaluate and streamline operational, 

environmental, and fundraising 

processes to ensure a sustainable 

library.

As part of the overarching Circulation Moonshot framework, assess and refine KDL's 

purchasing philosophy to mitigate waste, ensure alignment with having a popular materials 

collection, and ensure patrons and staff understand what a popular materials collection is and 

how to help patrons get materials from other resources.

Liz Guarino

2022  STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

40



 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 ISSUE ANALYSIS 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

41



 

 

 

 

 

42



RESOLUTION 
Health Insurance Funding (PA  152) 

 

 

 RESOLUTION 

43



CERTIFICATION 

44



RESOLUTION 
Approval of Proposed 2022 Budget 

 

 

 RESOLUTION 

45



46



CERTIFICATION 

47



 

 

48


	11. November KDL Board of Trustees Packet Cover
	11.18.2021 Board of Trustees Meeting Agenda - Draft 
	10.28.2021 - Board Meeting Minutes
	11 November 2021 October Financials
	11 November 2021 Check Register - Board Report
	11 November 2021 Voided Checks
	November 2021 Executive Director's Report Board Packet
	2022 Holiday Gift Basket
	October 2021 Monthly Projects Report
	October 2021 Statistical Summary
	Staff Changes & Anniversaries Nov 2021
	Staff Changes & Anniversaries
	November 2021


	BOARD OF TRUSTEES ATTENDANCE- 2021
	Annual Initiatives - 2022 Timeline
	11 November Packet - Maner Costerisan Issue Analysis
	11 November Packet - Resolution - Health Insurance Funding (PA152)
	11 November Packet - Resolution - Approval of Proposed 2022 Budget
	11 November Packet Exhibit A



